Company Registration Number: 08224216 (England & Wales)

## HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

COMPANIES HOUSE

## HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)

## CONTENTS

	Page
Reference and administrative details	1 - 2
Directors' report	3 - 18
Governance statement	19 - 27
Statement on regularity, propriety and compliance	28
Statement of directors' responsibilities	29
Independent auditors' report on the financial statements	30 - 34
Independent reporting accountant's report on regularity	35 - 36
Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account	<b>37</b> °
Balance sheet	38 - 39
Statement of cash flows	40
Notes to the financial statements	41 - 66

### HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)

#### REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS

Members

Ms P Kendali

Reverend | Pain

Diocese of St Albans Corporate

Parochial Church Council of the Ecclesiastical Parish of Cranfield Corporate Parochial Church Council of the Ecclesiastical Parish of Wootton Corporate

Directors

Ms P Kendall, Chair of Trustees

Mrs F Frossell Mrs I Turner Mr M Sanders

Mr N Colbourne (appointed 25 November 2021)

Ms S; Jenkins Mr S Hubbard Mrs S Abood Mrs T Powell

Mr M G Simpson, Head Teacher and Accounting Officer

Reverend | Pain

Ms S Stephenson (resigned 31 August 2022) Mr J Ulph (resigned 25 November 2021)

Company registered

number

08224216

Company name

Holywell Church of England Academy

Principal and registered

office

Red Llon Close Cranfield Bedford

Bedford Bedfordshire MK43 0JA

Senior management

team

Mr M G Simpson Miss A Stewart

Mr S Van Der Merwe

Mrs H Donnellan (resigned 31/08/21)

Mrs C Dinner Mrs S Law Mrs J Davies

Mr J Ulph (appointed 01/09/2021)

# REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Independent auditors

Duncan & Toplis Limited

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

15 Chequergate

Louth Lincolnshire LN11 0LJ

**Bankers** 

Lloyds Bank Ltd 25 Gresham Street

London EC2V 7HN

Solicitors

Stone King LLP Boundary House 91 Charterhouse St.

Clerkenwell London EC1M 6HR

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Academy for the period ended 31 August 2022.

Holywell Church of England Academy operates an academy for students aged 9 to 13 serving a catchment area in Bedfordshire. It has a student capacity of 720 and had a roll of 728 in the Autumn School Census 2021.

#### Structure, governance and management

#### a. Constitution

The Academy is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy.

The Governors act as the Directors for the charitable activities of Holywell Church of England Academy and are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as Holywell Church of England Academy.

Details of the Directors who served throughout the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

### b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

#### c. Directors' indemnities

A full insurance indemnity is taken out with the Zurich insurance company. Each member has cover of £5,000,000 against financial loss arising from negligent act, accidental error or omission in the course of official duties. This is reviewed annually against potential risk.

### DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### Structure, governance and management (continued)

#### d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Directors

The Articles outline the different types of Director, each category has slightly differing election processes, as outlined below:

The Members may appoint no less than 11 Foundation Directors with no maximum, but the total number of Directors who are appointed by the two parishes must be in the majority.

- The term of office for any Director shall be 4 years, save that this time limit shall not apply to the Head Teacher or any post which is held ex officio. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Director, any Director may be re-appointed or re-elected.
- Members appoint Foundation Directors to any Foundation Director vacancies.
- Up to 3 Parent Directors shall be elected by parents of registered pupils at the Academy. A Parent Director must be a parent of a student at the Academy at the time when they are elected. The term of office of a Parent Director can continue for the remaining elected term after they cease to be the parent of a registered student but such a Director would not be eligible to stand for re-election
- Up to 3 Staff Directors shall be appointed by the members. If a Staff Director ceases to work at the Academy then they shall be deemed to have resigned and shall cease to be a Director automatically on termination of his work at the Academy.
- The Directors may appoint up to 2 Co-opted Directors. A 'Co-opted Director' means a person who is appointed to be a Director by being Co-opted by Directors who have not themselves been so appointed.

Directors are subject to retirement or re-election at the end of their 4-year term of office unless the eligibility conditions listed above prevail.

#### e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Directors

The training and induction provided for new Directors will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary, induction will provide training on charity and educational legal and financial matters. All new Directors are given a tour of the Academy and the chance to meet with staff and students. All Directors are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Directors. As there are normally few new Directors a year, induction tends to be done informally and is tailored specifically to the individual.

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### Structure, governance and management (continued)

#### f. Organisational structure

The structure of the Academy consists of two senior levels: the Board of Directors (Governing Body) and the Head Teacher leading the Senior Leadership Team which in 2021/22 included 2 Deputy Head Teachers, an Assistant Head teacher, a Finance Director, a SEND co-ordinator and the School Business Manager.

An aim of this management structure is to distribute responsibility and accountability and to encourage involvement in decision making at all levels so that the School nurtures the talents of its entire staff to support continual improvement and excellence.

The Governing Body is responsible for setting the School's policies, adopting the School Improvement Plan and budget, monitoring performance against these plans and making major decisions about the direction of the School including its curriculum, the achievement and welfare of students and staff.

The Head Teacher and Senior Leadership Team control the School at an executive level, implementing the policies set by the Governing Body and reporting back to them.

The Governing Body has established three sub-committees and there is also a Strategy Group. Each sub-committee and the Strategy Group has its own terms of reference detailing the responsibilities discharged to the sub-committee or group, to the Head Teacher (The Accounting Officer) and to the Senior Leadership Team.

The terms of reference and meeting frequency for each sub-committee and group is reviewed and approved by the Governing Body annually. The Academy has an approved Financial Manual which details the School's authorised spending limits.

The sub-committees of the Governing Body are:

- Academy Business Committee (which includes the Audit and Risk Committee)
- Curriculum Committee
- Ethos and Pastoral Care Committee

The school operates the teacher's pay and conditions national scales. All staff have annual Appraisal reviews and pay reviews are carried out from there and this includes senior staff. Pay awards for senior staff are approved by the Academy Business Committee.

# (A company limited by guarantee)

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### Structure, governance and management (continued)

#### g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The pay and remuneration of the Academy Trust's key management personnel is set in line with the School teachers' pay and conditions document and guidance (2021). The Governing Body assigns the Academy to the relevant headteacher group based on the number of students on roll. For 2021-2022, the headteacher Group, as determined by the Governing Body, is Group 5 Unit totals = Unit totals = 5,830 (KS2 =  $361 \times 7 = 2,527 + KS3 367 \times 9 = 3,303$ ).

In line with the STPCD 2021 head teachers, deputy head teachers and assistant head teachers may not be awarded recruitment and retention awards other than as reimbursement of reasonably incurred housing or relocation costs. All other recruitment and retention considerations in relation to a head teacher, deputy head teacher or assistant head teacher – including non-monetary benefits – must be taken into account when determining the pay range.

The Business Committee may decide to pay additional payments to the Headteacher in accordance with the STPCD. Where a decision is made to increase the Headteacher's salary beyond the maximum of the appropriate HTG, the total sum of all payments made to the Headteacher will not exceed 25 per cent of the maximum of the HTG, except in wholly exceptional circumstances, which will be approved by the Business Committee.

In the event that it is considered necessary to exercise the provision set out above, the Business Committee will take external independent advice in accordance with the STPCD before agreeing to such a decision.

If, during any absence of the Headteacher, Deputy or Assistant Headteacher or a TLR post holder, the acting appointment is made and maintained for a period then the Business Committee will consider within four weeks of the acting appointment whether the teacher shall be paid an acting allowance. If no allowance is paid, the Business Committee may reconsider the position at any time.

In the prolonged absence of the Headteacher, a Deputy Headteacher, an Assistant Headteacher or a TLR post holder, the Business Committee may appoint a teacher to act up during the absence of the post holder. From the date that the Business Committee considers it necessary to make an acting appointment, an allowance will be paid equal to the difference between the salary currently paid to the person appointed to act up and a point considered appropriate by the Business Committee. The relevant conditions of service detailed within the STPCD will apply to any person in receipt of such an acting allowance.

Awards for Performance to Deputy and Assistant Heads: At the time of the annual assessment of teachers' salaries referred to in Section 2 of this policy, the Business Committee will consider recommendations from the Headteacher that any Deputy Headteacher or Assistant Headteacher be paid additional points subject to the maximum of their range. The Business Committee expects that the objectives for a deputy or assistant Headteacher will have become progressively challenging as they have gained experience in the role.

Where there are substantial difficulties in retaining the services of a current Deputy Headteacher or Assistant Headteacher the Business Committee may decide to change the salary range in accordance with the STPCD. Only in exceptional circumstances may the Deputy Headteacher or Assistant Headteacher's range overlap the Headteacher's pay range.

At the time of appointing a new Deputy Headteacher or Assistant Headteacher, the selection panel of the Business Committee making the new appointment shall determine the salary point on the pay range. The selection panel shall have regard to advice available from persons engaged by the Business Committee.

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### Structure, governance and management (continued)

### h. Trade union facility time

#### Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the Year Full-time equivalent employee number

### Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time	Number of employees	
0% 1%-50%	•	
51%-99% 100%	-	
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time	£	
Total cost of facility time	in the second se	
Total pay bill Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time		%
Pald trade union activities		
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours	•••	%

### I. Connected Organisations, including Related Party Relationships

The Academy is not part of any wider network although it works closely with its feeder lower schools, local middle schools, the upper school within the Wootton family of schools and the two local authorities from which students attend the school.

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

## Objectives and activities

#### a. Objects and aims

The principal object and activity of the charitable company is the operation of Holywell Church of England Academy to provide education for students of different abilities between the ages of 9 and 13.

In accordance with the Articles of Association the charitable company has adopted a "Scheme of Government" approved by the Secretary of State for Education and Skills. The Scheme of Government specifies, amongst other things, the basis for admitting students to The Academy, and that the curriculum should comply with the substance of the national curriculum.

The main objectives of The Academy during the period ended 31 August 2022 are summarised below:

- to ensure that every child enjoys the same high-quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and care;
- to raise the standard of educational achievement of all students;
- to improve the effectiveness of The Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure under continual review;
- to provide value for money for the funds expended;
- to comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements;
- to conduct Academy business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and openness; and
- To realise our Academy vision which is "to live life in all its fullness; Inspired by the teachings of Jesus, the Good Shepherd, we chose to live our values, being the best we can be in community."

### DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### Objectives and activities (continued)

### b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The Objectives for the Academy are summarised in the School Improvement Plan. These objectives are designed to ensure that the vision above is realised and that we secure a high-quality learning experience for all. It has also been designed to secure rapid improvement in the areas identified in the most recent Ofsted and SIAMS inspections so that the school is judged as 'Outstanding' in the next round of inspections.

Last OFSTED inspection (SECTION 8) - March 2018. The school was described as 'A good school'.

Ofsted Priorities – What the school needs to do to further improve and to secure an 'Outstanding' judgement: Leaders and those responsible for governance should ensure that:

- they further reduce the differences in progress and absence between disadvantaged students and all students nationally
- the recent changes made to assessment systems are embedded, so that students' progress is further accelerated.

Last SIAMS inspection - November 2016. The school was described as Good.

Section 48 SIAMS Priorities - to improve further the school should:

- draw on the clear Christian commitment of leaders, clarify, articulate and share a vision for the school
  which is expressed in explicitly Christian terms. Ensure it is used to inform and evaluate all policy and
  practice as well as considerations relating to the possible development of a multi-academy trust.
- Establish strategies for evaluating the impact of collective worship which enable the views of adults and students throughout the school community to inform positive planned future developments.

In order to ensure the school vision to live life in all its fullness is understood, known by all and drives the work of the school, the 2021-2022 School Improvement Plan has been structured around our school vision:

The main objectives during the year were:

### 1: to live our values

- To further develop our values education as the cornerstone of our school community so that all members of our community live our values
- To further develop restorative practices and the use of protective behaviours to facilitate conflict resolution (embed peaceful problem-solvers)
- To further develop student strategies to enable them to be confident, courageous, resilient and caring
- · To further develop staff strategies to enable them to be confident, courageous, resilient and caring

## 2: to be the best we can be

- Be the best we can be standards To further improve outcomes in all subjects and at KS2 especially Maths, Reading, Writing, GPS, and Greater Depth.
- To embed the recent changes made to assessment systems, so that students' progress is further accelerated (Ofsted 2018)
- To further reduce the differences in progress and absence between disadvantaged students and all students nationally (Ofsted 2018)
- To improve outcomes for SEND students
- Be the best we can be Behaviour To further develop student self-regulation so that low-level disruption and misbehaviour is minimised and so that students become peaceful problem solvers
- To ensure value-for-money, to self-evaluate our practices and to develop the most cost-effective business model

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### Objectives and activities (continued)

- To ensure the Student Premium and Sports Premium spend plans and strategic overviews have clear, measurable criteria, expressed in a way that people can be held to account
- To further push the quality of teaching and learning towards outstanding through consistently effective, quality questioning and challenge and through research into effective learning (Ofsted 2018)
- To review, research and systemise best practice in terms of curriculum
- To meet the Gatsby requirements for careers
- To further develop the appraisal system and link with providing opportunities for staff development
- To identify gaps in learning as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic (inc. as a result of school closure) and to support students in need of 'catch-up'

#### 3: to work and live 'in community'

- To further develop our concept and understanding of community through the use of community time and community-focused initiatives
- To further develop the Christian vision and work of the school in line with the new SIAMS framework (SIAMS 2016)
- To further develop and evaluate Collective Worship (SIAMS 2016)
- To identify and provide a wider range of experiences for all further develop students' experiences and cultural knowledge
- To further develop our links with the local and wider community (inc. local schools, parishes and parents)
- To further develop our outreach work
- To further develop leadership capacity and skills
- To further develop communication systems

#### c. Public benefit

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the duty to have due regard to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit, "Charities and Public Benefit".

The Academy's public benefit is enshrined in its charitable objects, which state the charity exists to advance for the public benefit education in the villages of Cranfield & Wootton and the surrounding area, in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by estimating, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools, offering a broad curriculum.

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### Strategic report

#### Achievements and performance

#### a. Key performance indicators

The Academies' KS2 attainment levels at May 2022 were as follows:

- Attainment in Reading, Grammar, Punctuations and Spelling (GPAS) and Maths were above the national average.
- Combined attainment was 1% below the national average.
- Progress scores were all 'Below average', however, in spite of the disruption to learning due to the pandemic, progress scores for Reading and Writing have improved on 2019's results. Maths progress score was not as strong as it was in 2019. (Please note that this is typical of Middle School data and has been acknowledged by Ofsted in their Inspection Data Summary Report where it states: "We know from published performance data that students at middle schools, on average, have lower progress scores at the end of key stage 2 than students at primary schools. Also, due to the age range of students at middle schools, students will have only attended a middle school for a short time before they take their key stage 2 tests and will still have a number of years left at the school.")

#### Attainment 2022

Cohort	180			
	% HOLYWELL	% NATIONAL	SCALED SCORE HOLYWELL	SCALED SCORE NATIONAL
READING	75%	74%	104	105
GPAS	73%	72%	104	105
WRITING	72%	69%		
MATHS	72%	71%	104	104
RWM	58%	59%		

### Progress 2022

Holywell's progress scores for Reading, Writing and Maths					
***	2022	2019	2018	2017	2016
Reading	-1.7	-1.9	-1.21	-2.48	-1.9
Writing	-1.1	-3.4	-1,39	-1.22	-1.3
Maths	-1.3	-0.7	-0.97	-1.48	-2.4

During 2021-2022 the Academy re-introduced a number of activities to enhance the curriculum. Various curriculum-linked trips and visits which had to be suspended during the pandemic were run in the latter part of the academic year including: Year 5 Life Path Tour, Year 6 Faith Tour, Year 8 visit to Milton Keynes, a residential trip to France Year 8 and a more local residential trip to the Wyre Valley (also for Year 8.) We delivered an extended PSHE Day and Values Day (around the value of Care).

Assemblies/Collective Worship have continued throughout the year with a mix of in-person and remote worship sessions via Zoom. There were also some House assemblies and Tutor Group assemblies – which were a

# (A company limited by guarantee)

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### Strategic report (continued)

#### **Achievements and performance (continued)**

mixture of recorded sessions, PowerPoint slides for tutors to use or face-to-face, small group meetings.

The values education programme continued throughout the year and continued to be well received and supported by parents and students alike. Values ambassadors were appointed and made a significant contribution to the values programme.

A CIF project to upgrade the Fire Safety provision for the Academy was part completed in 2020-2021. Fire Doors were replaced and an improved fire alarm system was partially completed. Works have had to be suspended following the discovery of asbestos fibres in specific ceiling voids. There was no immediate danger to staff or students, however, the work required significant resourcing to rectify the situation and complete the fire safety upgrade. An application for emergency funding to the DfE was unsuccessful and a new CIF bid was submitted. This was successful – however, it required a substantial contribution from school funds. The work was completed in Summer 2022. The work has identified further upgrades to be made. We will need to submit another CIF bid.

We continue to upgrade ICT hardware and software both in terms of infrastructure and cyber-security.

#### **Key Performance Indicators**

Ofsted Grading: Good SIAMS Grading: Good

Inspection Date: March 2018
Inspection Date: November 2016

#### **Attainment**

KS2	2022	2022 National	2019	2018	2017	
Reading	75%	74%	73%	78%	74%	
Writing	72%	69%	71%	80%	81%	
GPAS Grammar, Punctuation and Spelling	73%	72%	80%	78%	74%	
Maths	72%	71%	81%	82%	77%	
Reading, Writing and Maths	58%	59%	60%	68%	63%	

#### Average scaled scores

(where 100 = national expected standard)

	Reading	<u> </u>	:GPS		Mathemat	ics
	National	Holywell	National	Holywell	National	Holywell
2022	105	104	105	104	104	104
2019	104	103.3	106	104.5	105	105.6
2019 Target		106.5		106.5		105.8
2018	105.0	106.1	106.2	105.9	104.4	105.4
2018 Target		106.44		106		106.22
2017	104	104	106	104	104	104
2016	103	103	104	103	103	103

England, 2022 (all schools) Holywell

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

#### Progress 2022

Holywell's	progress scor	es for Reading, Wr	iting and Maths		
	2022	2019	2018	2017	2016
Reading	-1.7	-1.9	-1.21	-2.48	-1.9
Writing	-1.1	-3.4	-1.39	-1.22	-1.3
Maths	-1.3	-0.7	-0.97	-1.48	-2.4

### Attendance Data - 2021-2022 Summary

#### Attendance

- Overall attendance: Our attendance figure was 95.31%. The Covid-19 pandemic has created a whole set of challenges at the way we monitor and 'enforce' attendance this academic year.
- Compared to these averages we still should sit above 'national average' but below our own average for the
  last 4 years. Unfortunately, we had an influx of parents taking students out of school due to postponed
  COVID-19 holidays. All of these absences had to be logged as unauthorised and it has really impacted our
  overall attendance in a big way.
- Pupil premium (124 pupils) Currently PP figures are below the old (Pre Covid) national average at 93.50%. This figure has improved significantly since the first 5 weeks (90.25%) of this academic year. It was expected that the current Covid climate would affect these families more. Many PP families face particular challenges that makes it harder to engage or support them. It will be of interest to see the updated national attendance figure for PP once they come out. Compared to our own data we have seen a significant improvement in 2022 compared to last year's data. However, no national average for this group has been published since the start of Covid. The FFT indicates that we still sit above the average of schools with our PP attendance. It would be reasonable to predict that our PP numbers are in keeping with the national trend. We continue to monitor this closely.
- SEN students SEN Attendance has dropped significantly compared to last year. Last year SEN drastically improved and sat at (95.46%) well above the old national average for SEN but also close to national school averages, and not far off our own school average. This year has seen it drop to 93.39%. This still compares favourably with the pre COVID national average of 92.30%. There is a big cross over between a group of SEN students and our PA. Key stage 2 are closer to the FFT averages than Key Stage 3; which reflects the greater number of SEN needs in Key Stage 2. Much of staff time is allocated to get this particular group of students into school and lessons.

#### Persistent Absence Data

Persistent absentees (PA-any student with 90% or less attendance). Our PA remains a challenge for us particularly with the challenges COVID-19 has brought. However, we have managed to keep PA to 11.5% overall. This equates to 84 students. We had 3 long term or part time absentees. The pastoral support team, safeguarding team and pastoral staff were overwhelmed with students that have found the return to school hard, compared to any other year. Students that needed extra support and intervention have drastically increased. We have also seen a spike in late arrivals to school post lock down.

The 2 students that went to Slovakia have now returned.

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### Strategic report (continued)

#### Achievements and performance (continued)

We have 2 parents that we have read police cautions to and are now in the process of taking one of the parents to court.

We have issued 2 FNP (fix penalty notices) and 2 more are in the process of being issued.

#### Student recruitment

The Academy, due to its long-standing good reputation and standing in the local community, its ever-improving outcomes for students, and its deep-rooted Christian Values and Ethos, continued to be over-subscribed in 2021-2022. In all years, there has been a regular waiting list of applications for each place. Appeals have been handled by Central Bedfordshire Council on behalf of the Academy (to ensure total transparency and objectivity) and have resulted in increased numbers in all year groups.

#### **Budget Monitoring**

The budget for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 forecast a balanced budget. Staffing costs were budgeted at 85:8% of total non-capital income and actual costs were 85:2%. Premises costs (excluding depreciation) were budgeted at 5:1% and final expenditure was 3:9%. Other supplies and services (excluding depreciation) were budgeted at 9:1% and final costs were 10:0% of budgeted revenue income.

#### b. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Governing Body has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note of the financial statements.

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### Strategic report (continued)

#### Financial review

#### a. Reserves policy

The majority of the Trust's annual income is obtained from the Department for Education (DfE) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received during the year ended 31 August 2022 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted general funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

During the period ended 31 August 2022, total unrestricted and restricted income (excluding capital funding within the restricted fixed asset fund) were £3,976,952. This compares with expenditure (excluding depreciation within the restricted fixed asset fund and pension reserve expenditure) of £3,734,066 and transfers out to the Restricted Fixed Asset Fund of £100,330 to give a surplus of income over expenditure on revenue funding totalling £142,556. This equates to the change in balance of the restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) plus unrestricted funds reported at the previous year end.

As at 31 August 2022, restricted general funds (excluding pension reserves) were £384,056 (2021: £250,016) and unrestricted funds were £113,026 (2021: £104,510) giving total free reserves of £497,082 (2021: £354,526).

At 31 August 2022 the Local Government pension scheme deficit was £122,000. Although the deficit is material, the academy is taking the advice of the actuary regarding the repayment structure. Advised future contributions have also been included within the annual budget.

The Academy's 'free' reserves are its unrestricted funds plus restricted general funds (i.e. excluding pension reserve and fixed asset reserve). 'Reserves' are therefore the resources the Academy has or can make available to spend for any or all of the Academy's purposes once it has met its commitments and covered its other planned expenditure. More specifically 'free reserves' represent income to the Academy which is to be spent at the Directors' discretion in furtherance of the Academy's objects but which is not yet spent, committed or designated.

The directors review the reserve levels of the Academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams. The directors have determined that the appropriate level of free reserves should be equivalent to 1-2 months' expenditure, which is approximately £311,172 to £622,344. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance.

The Academy's level of free revenue reserves for 2021-2022 is £497,082 comprising unrestricted funds of £113,026 and restricted general funds of £384,056.

The amount of reserves that can only be realised by disposing of tangible fixed assets as at 31 August 2022 is £9,100,300 (2021: £9,043,444).

#### b. Investment policy

The Academy has no financial investments at this time.

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### c. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Academy's Business Committee undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to which the Academy is exposed. The committee identifies systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions which should mitigate any potential negative impact on the Academy. A Risk and Audit element has been added to the role of the Business Committee.

The internal controls for managing risks deemed as medium and high are incorporated into an annual risk management action plan. The effectiveness of the Academy's internal controls in managing the risks identified is regularly monitored.

A thorough appraisal has been undertaken of the existing risks and any emerging risks, for example, those arising from changes to national funding policy and/or local circumstances. In addition to the annual review, the Committee will also consider any risks which arise during the year, for example, as a result of a new area of work being undertaken by the Academy.

A risk register, covering low, medium and high level risks, is maintained at Academy level. The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the Academy and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised as low, medium and high using a consistent scoring system.

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the Academy. However, not all factors are within the Academy's control and other factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the Academy.

### 1. Government funding

The Academy has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and the Local Authority.

This risk has and will be mitigated in a number of ways:

- Considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key relationships with the various funding bodies;
- Ensuring the Academy is focused on those priority sectors which will continue to benefit from public funding;
- Contingency planning embedded into the Academy budget process.

#### 2. Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities

The financial statements report the share of the local government pension scheme deficit on the Academy's balance sheet in line with the requirements of FRS 102.

The Academy takes professional advice on this position and makes appropriate contributions on the basis of that advice to ensure the deficit does not become unmanageable.

#### 3. Student Retention Strategy

The Academy seeks to maintain its popularity with current and prospective students by:

- ensuring the Academy delivers high quality education and training;
- maintaining outstanding success rates and good inspection outcomes; and
- investing in its teaching staff and resources.

This places the Academy in an excellent position to attract new students.

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### 4. Schools for the Future - Reorganisation of schooling in Central Bedfordshire

As part of Central Bedfordshire's Local Plan, all schools in the local area are exploring the possibility of reorganising schools into a Primary-Secondary structure. Various models have been proposed and explored some have a higher element of risk to the Academy:

#### **Fundraising**

Holywell Church of England Academy is a financially stable and viable charity. As such, we do not rely on fundraising to balance our budget. We do engage in a small amount of fundraising to enable us to provide additional facilities, materials and/or experiences for our students. We are mindful of the provisions of the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016 and we are guided by the Charity Commission publication "Charity fundraising: a guide to director duties (CC20) and the Code of Fundraising practice.

#### Approach to fundraising

We always ensure that our fundraising is always legal, open, honest, respectful and accountable. We treat our potential donors honestly and decently, giving them the information they need to make an informed choice about their giving. Where fundraising takes place, we are aware of how fundraising is being delivered; we know who is making the ask; we know what risks there are from any fundraising activity; we monitor if any complaints are made about the fundraising practice; and we use our school complaints policy to deal with any Issues.

Working with, and oversight of, any commercial participators / professional fundraisers

We don't usually work with commercial partners for the benefit of the academy. We do however, support local and national charities. We do work with the Parent, Teachers and Friends Association of Holywell School (PTFA) who raise funds for the school. They have their own constitution and operate as a charity.

Fundraising conforming to recognised standards

As an academy, we ensure that Charity legislation is regularly reviewed and updated. We stay up to date with the latest developments in the law and Code of Fundraising Practice through the ESFA, through our HR Provider (EPM), through updates from Central Bedfordshire Council and through our accountants and auditors.

Monitoring of fundraising carried out on behalf of the academy

The only fundraising done on behalf of the Academy is through the PTFA. The PTFA works closely with the Senior Leadership Team and there is representation from the Academy at PTFA meetings. The academy has full access to PTFA accounts and fundraising activities are monitored and assessed for risk.

#### Fundraising complaints

Complaints will be dealt with through the Academy's Complaints Policy.

Protection of the public, including vulnerable people, from unreasonably intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches, and undue pressure to donate.

Fundraising will adhere to ethical fundraising processes in line with the Charity Commission's Charity fundraising: a guide to director duties (CC20).

# DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

## Plans for future periods

The school is seeking to exploit the opportunities afforded by conversion to Academy status. Initially by utilising increased financial resources and governance freedoms to improve further the standard of teaching and learning but also, importantly, to improve the school estate. As part of the Central Bedfordshire Council Schools for the Future project, the Governing Body is exploring a move to Secondary Status in collaboration with CBC and the local family of schools.

### Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

The Academy has not held funds on behalf of others during the year.

#### Disclosure of information to auditors

In so far as the Directors are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
- that Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

#### **Auditors**

The auditors, Duncan & Toplis Limited, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Juniper Education has been appointed to conduct our internal scrutiny.

The Directors' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Directors, as the company directors, on the behalf by:

Ms P Kendall

Chair

#### **GOVERNANCE STATEMENT**

### Scope of responsibility

As Directors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Holywell Church of England Academy has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Directors, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency framework for governance.

The board of Directors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head teacher, as accounting officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Holywell Church of England Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of Directors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

## HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)

### **GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)**

#### Governance

### Committee structure and effective management

The Governing Body operates three sub committees and a strategy group in addition to the Full Governing Body which is the main board:

- The Curriculum Committee
- The Ethos and Pastoral Care Committee
- The Academy Business Committee (ABC) (referred to in this report also as the Finance Committee)
- Strategy Group

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Directors' Report and in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities.

The Board and its Sub-committees meet regularly enough to discharge their responsibilities and ensure robust governance and effective financial management. Extra meetings can be added in, depending on the business priorities and requirements. The number of meetings and attendance figures are given below.

As can be seen below, in 2021/2 the Full Governing Board formally met five times and the Business Committee (inc Finance and Risk and Audit) met five times (including an extra meeting of just the Audit and Risk Committee which now forms part of the Finance Committee). The full governing board also met for the presentation of the accounts before an ABC meeting where matters were discussed, but this was not an official full meeting. This resulted in eleven points through the year at which effective financial management, in particular, was tested and challenged. All the other committees/group met three times each.

In relation to effective financial management, the Board maintained effective oversight of funds by:

- Ensuring the Finance Committee supported the Board in maintaining the Trust as a going concern.
- Delegating specific financial powers to the Finance Committee (as detailed in the Terms of Reference of the Finance Committee).
- Ensuring the Board approved the budget for the financial year.
- Sharing management accounts with the Chair of Directors and all the other Finance Committee (and other) Directors monthly.
- Encouraging the Chair of the Finance Committee to challenge and question the Finance Team during school visits and at other times virtually.
- Considering when the Board and the Finance Committee met, taking action to maintain financial viability.
- Ensuring an appropriate, reasonable and timely response to the findings by the Auditors, taking
  opportunities to strengthen financial management and control.

The quality of the data used at each main board or sub committee/group meeting is accepted by Directors as robust, accurate and useful. The Head teacher and members of the Senior Leadership Team provide data according to their individual responsibilities. The Chairs of the Committees/group, as well as the link Directors, make efforts to work with the data providers to understand and question the data.

# (A company limited by guarantee)

#### **GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)**

#### Governance (continued)

#### **Governance reviews:**

Governance is continually reviewed through the Chair of Directors' oversight of each committee/group and of the contribution of each individual Director. Each main board and subcommittee meeting also provides an opportunity to consider how the work of each committee/group is going and whether there are key areas for Directors to focus on. At various points throughout 2021/22 Directors were encouraged to become familiar with the Academy Trust Handbook and with financial management generally. The Full Governing Body have reviewed the efficiency of various aspects of governance including the effectiveness of meetings, Directors' interaction with the Headteacher's report and staff views on governance.

Directors also began to formulate individual link role descriptions and schedules of work to bring forward into 2022/23 as a way of ensuring regular lialson with the school and effective monitoring and challenge of various key aspects of the school. These link roles are also a way of providing evidence that individual Directors are active and making an effective contribution.

A skills audit of Individual Directors was completed in September 2021 and will be revisited in the Autumn Term 2022. There was a self-review of Governance conducted by an external consultant in October 2021. This identified key areas of focus for the Governing Board.

### Attendance at meetings

#### Full Governing Body (referred to in this report also as the Main Board)

The Full Governing Body formally met 5 times during the year. All the meetings were held virtually in line with the continuing Covid-19 restrictions.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Directors was as follows:

Director	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Ms P Kendall, Chair of Trustees	4	5
Mrs F Frossell	3	5
Mrs I Turner	4	5
Mr M Sanders	. 2	5
Mr N Colbourne (appointed 25/11/21)	<b>3</b> .	3
Ms S Jenkins	5	5
Mr S Hubbard	3	5
Mrs S Abood	4	5
Mrs T Powell	<b>5</b> :	5
Mr M G Simpson, Head Teacher and Accounting	·5	5
Officer		
Reverend I Pain	4	5
Ms S Stephenson (resigned 31/08/22)	4	5
Mr J Ulph (resigned 25/11/21)	1	1

### **Curriculum Committee**

The Curriculum Committee is a Sub Committee of the Main Board and it met 3 times in the year. All the meetings were held virtually in line with the continuing Covid-19 restrictions.

Objective: Ensures high quality provision for students and professional development opportunities for staff - subset of Directors attend.

### **GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)**

### Governance (continued)

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Director	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Mrs S Abood	: <b>3</b> .	3
Mr S Hubbard	2	3
Ms S Jenkins	2	3,
Ms P Kendall	2:	3
Mr.M Sanders (chair)	3	· <u>3</u>
Mr M G Simpson	3	3
Ms S Stephenson (resigned 31/08/22)	2	3

#### **Ethos and Pastoral Care Committee**

The Ethos and Pastoral Care Committee is a Sub Committee of the Main Board and it met 3 times in the year. All the meetings were held virtually in line with the continuing Covid-19 restrictions.

Objective: Ensures the Christian character of the school is upheld and addresses the care and guidance of students, - sub set of Directors attend.

Attendance during the year was as follows:

Meetings attended	Out of a possible
<b>3</b>	.3
<b>⋅3</b> :	3
•	
<b>.3</b>	:3
3 <sup>,</sup>	3
. <b>2</b>	3
1	2
3	<b>∴3</b>
0:	1
	3 3

## Strategy Group

The Strategy Group is a SubGroup of the Main Board and it met 3 times in the year. All the meetings were held virtually in line with the continuing Covid-19 restrictions.

Objective: Ensures items of a strategic nature are discussed fully outside of the main board allowing for a more lengthy and in depth discussion - Directors drop in and attend as they wish, this is not such a 'set' sub group as other committees so the attendance figures are not so relevant here.

Director	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Ms S Jenkins	3	·3
Ms P Kendall (Chair)	3.	<b>:3</b>
Mrs I Turner	3	3
Mr M G Simpson, Head Teacher and Accounting	ı 3	<b>3</b> ,
Officer	,	
Mr M Sanders	3	3

### **GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)**

### Governance (continued)

Academy Business Committee (ABC) (since April 2021 this subsumed the new Audit and Risk Committee (A&RC))

The Academy Business Committee (ABC) is a Sub Committee of the Main Board and it met 5 times in the year.

At the April 2021 ABC meeting, a new Audit and Risk Committee was set up as part of ABC, meeting at the end of that meeting and each meeting thereafter. All the meetings were held virtually in line with the continuing Covid-19 restrictions.

Objective: Ensures all aspects of the school finances and personnel areas are managed effectively by:

- coordinating the planning and budgeting processes
- regularly monitoring the management accounts
- Interacting with all other committees, to advise on the appropriate means by which their requirements which have budget implications can best be met
- ensuring the annual accounts are produced in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the DfE guidance issued to academies
- authorising the award of contracts over £25,000
- authorising changes to the School personnel establishment

Director	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Mrs F Frossell (Chair)	4	<b>5</b> .
Mr M G Simpson, Head Teacher and Accounting	5	5
Officer		
Mrs I Turner	5	<b>!5</b> /
Ms P Kendall	5	:5:
Mrs T Powell	5	1 <b>5</b> .

#### **GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)**

#### Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Head teacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year, and reports to the board of directors where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year as set out below.

Improving educational results for our students remains our key priority. The Academy has taken the following steps to support school improvement for our students and to raise their attainment and aspirations. The Academy is committed to supporting our students in reaching their full potential through academic achievement, extra-curricular opportunities and extended learning to develop the whole person to help prepare them for their next stage of education.

**Targeted improvement:** The Academy has a robust tracking system for monitoring achievement and is continually looking at how data can inform staff in order for them to support and extend the learning of the students. We have employed skilled staff to support our school improvement agenda.

**Focus on individual students:**The Academy supports students through the Year-group Pastoral system with form tutors and Heads of Year. Students have access to wellbeing support – particularly from our two Assistant Designated Safeguarding Leaders with a brief for supporting students and families. Our SEND team provides support for students with learning needs. Academic support comes from interventions and small-group tutoring. In 2021-2022, Holywell engaged with the National Tutoring Programme.

The Academy rewards excellence and encourages positive behaviour. We celebrate achievement and encourage students to try new activities to develop their confidence and leadership skills.

As a Middle School Academy we provide the full range of National Curriculum subjects for Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3. In addition, all students in year 7 have a Drama lesson each week. In year 8 students have one lesson per week as an Option programme enabling them to work in more depth and range in a subject area of their choice. Operating in a secondary form of school organisation, the Academy has been able to move to the overwhelming majority of teaching throughout the school being delivered by subject specialists.

Collaboration: The Academy works closely with its partner schools – destination Upper School, sister Middle School and partner Lower Schools. The headteachers and staff of each school meet regularly to share ideas, good practice and discuss issues. The Academy is an active member of the Bedfordshire Middle School Headteachers' Association and good practice was shared during the various lockdowns on risk assessments, curriculum planning and health and safety provisions. The Academy works closely with the Diocese of St Albans.

Quantifying improvements: The Directors' Curriculum Committee meets at least once per term to ensure that the quality of provision for students at the Academy continues to be at least good and is clearly addressing improvement plan issues so that the Academy is evidently moving towards delivering outstanding quality in all areas of provision. The Academy has become the local school of first preference with intake numbers above its agreed number. 2021-2022 sees the school at its capacity in line with the expansion agreement with Central Bedfordshire Local Authority.

#### **GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)**

#### Review of value for money (continued)

Financial governance and oversight: The Academy's Governing Body has strong oversight of the financial management of the budget. The Academy Business Committee meet regularly to review the financial position, to receive reports and to challenge decisions. Our external auditors review our financial processes. The levels of delegation on spending proposals ensure we take the necessary steps to achieve best value.

The Full Governing Body approves the budget each year and is mindful of the need to balance expenditure against income to ensure the Academy remains a 'going concern'. The Governing Body also receives and approves the Annual Accounts and External Auditors Management Report.

Better purchasing: The Business/Finance office is always striving to find Best Value in purchasing and uses a number of established Consortiums i.e. ESPO and Herts.

Fitness for purpose: The Academy has a cycle of review for its on-going services from external organisations to ensure those services continue to meet the needs of the school, are the best available to us at that time, and offer good value for money. Our Contract management system enables us to be alerted to 'end-of-contract' information in a timely manner which gives us the opportunity of reviewing the current service provision and costs against others out there. This software also serves as a networking opportunity as it links to other schools/academies that are using it to compare like for like services.

Tender exercises are regularly undertaken to ensure that high value contracts are assessed against the marketplace on a regular basis to ensure that long term contracts (3 to 5 years) remain competitive.

**Reviewing Controls and Managing Risk:** Monthly budget monitoring reports are produced by the Finance Director. These reports are distributed to the Headteacher and Academy Business members and any remedial action taken to address any significant variances that may have an impact on the budget out-turn.

Reviewing operation to maximise use of resources: The Academy Leadership Team review expenditure and make adjustments based on the effectiveness of strategies introduced in previous years, curriculum offer, and any new strategies identified in the Academy Development Plan.

Lessons learned: The Academy has reached the end of its tenth year of operations and we have continued to learn the options open to us and the autonomy and flexibilities we have. Our continued curriculum development to support high student achievement remains our top priority. We will be focusing on how best to resource our School Improvement Plan.

#### The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Holywell Church Of England Academy for the period ended 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

#### **GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)**

#### Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Directors has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of directors is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of directors.

#### The risk and control framework

The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Directors
- regular reviews by the Academy Business Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
- setting targets to measure financial and other performance
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines delegation of authority and segregation of duties
- identification and management of risks

The board of Directors has considered the need for a specific internal audit function (Section 3.1 of the Academy Trust Handbook) and has appointed Juniper Education for our internal scrutiny for this and ongoing periods to provide independent assurance to the board that its financial and other controls, and risk management procedures, are operating effectively.

An initial Internal Controls Evaluation was carried out in the Summer Term 2021 and required actions will be enacted in the 2021-2022 academic year. A full review of the Academy's risk register was carried out in September 2021 and this led to identifying areas of priority for review over the next three years. Juniper have completed two visits (which covered Financial areas and Cyber Security) this year and have also prepared a summary report of their findings which will be presented to the Audit and Risk Committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.

Duncan & Toplis Limited will also perform checks as part of their statutory audit procedures.

## **Review of effectiveness**

As accounting officer the Head Teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the work of the Internal Scrutiny auditor;
- the work of the external auditor;
- the financial management and governance self-assessment process
- the work of the Finance Director who has responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the Academy Business Committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

## **GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)**

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Directors on 8th December 2012. and signed on their behalf by:

Ms P Kendall

Chair

Mr M G Simpson Accounting Officer

### STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As:accounting officer of Holywell Church of England Academy I have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy board of Directors and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the funding agreement in place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that I and the Academy board of Directors are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Academy's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety of funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of Directors and ESFA.

Mr M G Simpson Accounting Officer

Date: 3 Demarkon 2022

#### STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Directors (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial. Year: Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022;
- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements:
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved

order

the members

of the Board of and signed on its behalf by:

Directors

on

Ms P Kendall

Chair

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

#### **Opinion**

We have audited the financial statements of Holywell Church of England Academy (the 'academy') for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

### Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

### Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY (CONTINUED)

#### Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements and our Auditors' report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

#### Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the Information given in the Directors' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
- the Directors' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

#### Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors' report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY (CONTINUED)

## Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities, the Directors (who are also the directors of the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY (CONTINUED)

### Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

We have identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements from our general commercial experience, knowledge of the sector, a review of regulatory and legal correspondence and through discussions with Directors and other management obtained as part of the work required by auditing standards. We have also discussed with the Directors and other management the policies and procedures relating to compliance with laws and regulations. We communicated laws and regulations throughout the team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential impact of different laws and regulations varies considerably. Firstly, the company is subject to laws and regulations that directly impact the financial statements (for example financial reporting legislation) and we have assessed the extent of compliance with such laws as part of our financial statements audit. This included the identification and testing of unusual material journal entries and challenging management on key estimates, assumptions and judgements made in the preparation of the financial statements. These key areas of uncertainty are disclosed in the accounting policies.

Secondly, the company is subject to other laws and regulations where the consequence for non-compliance could have a material effect on the amounts or disclosures in the financial statements. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: Ofsted rating, Health & Safety Law, HR & minimum wage law, Company Law, compliance with the Funding agreement, compliance with the Academy Trust Handbook and the completion of DBS checks.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the Directors and other management and inspection. We have performed audit work through enquiries with management regarding any non-compliance and reviewed all available information to assess whether any breaches have been found. Through these procedures, if we became aware of any non-compliance, we considered the impact on the procedures performed on the related financial statement items.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. The further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it. As with any audit, there is a greater risk of non-detection of irregularities as these may involve collusion, intentional omissions of the override of internal controls. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: <a href="https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities">www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities</a>. This description forms part of our

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY (CONTINUED)

Auditors' report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Timothy Godson FCA (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of

**Duncan & Toplis Limited** 

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Shean or 10phie

15 Chequergate

Louth

Lincolnshire

LN11 OLJ

Date: 12 December 2022

## INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23rd September 2021 and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Holywell Church of England Academy during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Holywell Church of England Academy and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Holywell Church of England Academy and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Holywell Church of England Academy and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

## Respective responsibilities of Holywell Church of England Academy's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Holywell Church of England Academy's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 October 2012 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

#### Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts Issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the Academy's income and expenditure.

### Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Ohorna Toplis Ud.

Timothy Godson FCA

Duncan & Toplis Limited

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

15 Chequergate Louth Lincolnshire LN11 OLJ

Date: 12 Décember 2022

# STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

	Note	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2022	Total funds 2022 £	Total funds 2021 £
Income from:						•
Donations and capital grants	3	5,210	123,953	164,424	293,587	16,794
Other trading activities	5	62,237	3,570		65,807	25,636
Investments	6	83	<b>`=</b> .	:=-	83	49
Charitable activities:						•
Funding for the academy trust's educational operations	• .•	#.	3,781,899	ing.	3,781,899	3,575,458
Total income		67,530	3,909,422	164,424	4,141,376	3,617,937
Expenditure on:		` <u></u> -	· · · · · · ·	<u> </u>	· Aller confidence of the Conf	Management
Academy's educational operations		59,014	3,928,052	209,726	4,196,792	3,822,175
Total expenditure		59,014	3,928,052	209,726	4,196,792	3,822,175
Net income/(expenditure ) Transfers between funds Net movement in funds before other	17	8,516	(18,630) (100,330)	(45;302) 100,330	(55,416) -	(204,238) -
recognised gains/(losses)		8,516	(118,960)	55,028	(55,416)	(204,238)
Other recognised gains/(losses): Actuarial gains/(losses)						,
on defined benefit pension schemes	25	f <b>ee</b> ≩	2,163,000	· •	2,163,000	(281,000)
Net movement in funds		8,516	2,044,040	55,028	2,107,584	(485,238)
Reconciliation of funds:						
Total funds brought forward		104,510	(1,781,984)	9,064,535	7,387,061	7,872,299
Net-movement in funds		8,516	2,044,040	55,028	2,107,584	(485,238)
Total funds carried forward		113,026	262,056	9,119,563	9,494,645	7,387,061

## HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee) REGISTERED NUMBER: 08224216

## BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

				,	
	Note		2022 £		2021 £
Fixed assets	Note		£		£
Tangible assets	13		9,100,300		9,043,444
Current assets					
Debtors	14	272,848	, ,	85,887	
Cash at bank and in hand		429,767	e de la companya de l	350,095	
Liabilities		702,615	••	435,982	•
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year	15	(178,369)		(49,425)	
Net current assets		<del>(40 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - </del>	524,246	Participation of the second of	386,557
Total assets less current liabilities			9,624,546		9,430,001
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year	16		(7,901)		(10,940)
Net assets excluding pension liability			9,616,645		9,419,061
Defined benefit pension scheme liability	25		(122,000)		(2,032,000)
Total net assets			9,494,645		7,387,061
Funda at the Assalamus			·		· · ·
Funds of the Academy Restricted funds:					
Fixed asset funds	17	9,119,563		9,064,535	
Restricted income funds	17	384,056		250,016	
Restricted funds excluding pension liability	17	9,503,619		9,314,551	
Pension reserve	17	(122,000)		(2,032,000)	
Total restricted funds	17°	·	9,381,619		7,282,551
Unrestricted income funds	<b>17</b> ′,		113,026		104,510
Total funds	•		9,494,645		7,387,061
				•	

The financial statements on pages 37 to 66 were approved by the Directors, and authorised for issue on and are signed on their behalf, by:

## HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee) REGISTERED NUMBER: 08224216

## BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

Ms P Kendall

Chair

## STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

	2022	2021
Note	<b>£</b>	<b>£</b>
19	184,786	153,094
21	(102,075)	(14,022)
20	(3,039)	(3,039)
•	79,672	136,033
	350,095	214,062
22, 23	429,767	350,095
	21 20	Note £  19 184,786  21 (102,075)  20 (3,039)  79,672  350,095

The notes on pages 41 to 66 form part of these financial statements

## (A company limited by guarantee)

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### 1. Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

### 1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 Issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

#### 1.2 Going concern

The Directors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Directors make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

### HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### 1. Accounting policies (continued)

#### 1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

#### Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

#### Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of financial activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

#### Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

#### Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the Academy has provided the goods or services.

#### 1.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

### • Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### 1. Accounting policies (continued)

#### 1.4 Expenditure (continued)

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

### 1.5 Taxation

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

#### 1.6 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £3,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than leasehold land and assets under construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold property Furniture and equipment

- over 50 years straight line - over 4 years straight line

Computer equipment

- over 3 years straight line

Motor vehicles

- over 4 years straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

#### 1.7 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### Accounting policies (continued)

#### 1.8 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short-maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

#### 1.9 Liabilities

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Salix loans are initially recognised at the amount received, with the carrying amount adjusted in subsequent years to reflect repayments and any accrued interest.

#### 1.10 Financial instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost as detailed in the notes. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

#### 1.11 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straight line basis over the lease term.

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### 1. Accounting policies (continued)

#### 1.12 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy in separate director administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

### 1.13 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Directors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### 2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

### 3. Income from donations and capital grants

	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2022	Total funds 2022 £	Total funds 2021 £
Contributions to school trips and events	5,210	123,953	: <del></del>	129,163	3,344
Capital Grants	<u></u>	₹	164,424	164,424	13,450
	5,210	123,953	164,424	293,587	16,794
Total 2021		3,344	13,450	16,794	

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

## 4. Funding for the Academy's charitable activities

Other DfE/ESFA grants  Pupil Premium 143,264 143,264 138,4  Other DfE/ESFA Revenue grants 102,867 102,867 38,0  Teachers pay and pension grants - 155,5	
Other DfE/ESFA grants  Pupil Premium 143,264 143,264 138,4  Other DfE/ESFA Revenue grants 102,867 102,867 38,0  Teachers pay and pension grants - 155,5	
Other DfE/ESFA Revenue grants 102,867 102,867 38,0 Teachers pay and pension grants - 155,5	3,320,698 <b>3,320,698</b> 2,969,385
Teachers pay and pension grants - 155,5	143,264 <b>143,264</b> <i>138,485</i>
	102,867 <b>102,867</b> 38,012
- 3.566.829 3.301.3	- 155,502
Other Government grants	- <b>3,566,829</b> <i>3,301,384</i>
SEN 1-1 funding 99,327 <b>99,327</b> 82,3	99,327 <b>99,327</b> <i>82,383</i>
Other local authority revenue grants 15,335 15,335 12,3	15,335 <b>15,335</b> <i>12,360</i>
Growth funding 87,556 <b>87,55</b> 6 84,7	87,556 <b>87,556</b> 84,724
202,218 202,218 179,4 COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)	202,218 202,218 179,467
	- 56,400
·	·
12,852 <b>12,852</b> 94,6	12,852 <b>12,852</b> <i>94,607</i>
Total Funding for the academy trust's educational operations 3,781,899 3,781,899 3,575,4	
3,781,899 <b>3,781,899</b> 3,575,4	3,781,899 <b>3,781,899</b> <i>3,575,458</i>

During the year the Academy received nil (£56,400 - 2021) in respect of catch up premium and spent nil (£43,112 - 2021) on extra learning resources for the Academy, with £13,288 (£13,288 - 2021) unspent at the year end.

During the year the Academy received £12,852 (£38,207 - 2021) in respect of other Covid-19 funding and spent nil (£3,647 - 2021) on additional cleaning costs incurred by the Academy as a result of the pandemic, with £47,412 (£34,560 - 2021) unspent at the year end.

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

5.	income from other trading ac	tivities				
			Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £	Total funds 2021 £
	Receipts from supply teacher insu	rance claims		3,570	3,570	4,025
	Lettings income		2,990	<b>0,07.</b> 0	2,990	1,800
	Other income - PTFA & sundry		59,247	*	59,247	12,333
	School Fund sales			•		7,478
	Total 2022	·	62,237	3,570	65,807	25,636
	Total 2021		21,611	4,025	25,636	·
			The same assessed that is the same	process of the latter of the l		
6.	Investment income	•				
			. :	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £	Total funds 2021 £
	Bank account interest:	· .		83	83	49
7.	Expenditure			•		
	٠.	Staff Costs 2022 £	Premises 2022 £	Other 2022 £	Total 2022 £	Total 2021 £
	Funding for the academy trust's educational operations:					
	Direct costs	2,809,202	183,533	372,314	3,365,049	3,050,713
	Support costs	492,417		207,626	831,743	771,462
	Total 2022	3,301,619	315,233	579,940	4,196,792	3,822,175
	Total 2021	3,133,872	351,639	336,664	3,822,175	

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

8. Ana	lysis of exp	enditure b	v activities
--------	--------------	------------	--------------

Analysis of experience by activities	•			
	Activities undertaken directly 2022	Support costs	Total funds 2022 £	Total funds 2021 £
Funding for the academy trust's educational operations	3,365,049	831,743	4,196,792	3,822,175
Total 2021	3,050,713	771,462	3,822,175	
Analysis of direct costs				
		Educational operations 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £	Total funds 2021 È
Staff costs		2,809,202	2,809,202	2,673,643
Depreciation		209,726	209,726	204,060
Educational supplies		284,395	284,395	105,539
Technology costs	• • • • •	44,458	44,458	38,931
Staff development	•	8,561	8,561	13,017
Other costs:	,	8,707	8,707	15,523
Total 2022		3,365,049	3,365,049	3,050,713

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

## 8. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

### Analysis of support costs

	Educational operations 2022	Total funds 2022	Total funds 2021 £
	<b>-</b> /	. ~	
Staff costs	492,417	492,417	460,229
Technology costs	7,083	7,083	12,286
Maintenance of premises and equipment	35,200	35,200	41,864
Cleaning	11,561	11,561	24,607
Rent and rates	14,044	14,044	23,470
Energy costs	50,016	50,016	54,409
Insurance	24,955	24,955	22,689
Security	4,457	4,457	1,573
Transport	2,759	2,759	653
Telephone, postage and stationery	12,877	12,877	8,910
Catering	35,740	35,740	23,671
Other costs	60,063	60,063	54,660
Operating leases	35,539	35,539	6,485
Auditors' remuneration	16,090	16,090	13,450
Legal costs - other	28,942	28,942	22,506
Total 2022	831,743	831,743	771,462

During the year ended 31 August 2022, the Academy incurred the following Governance costs:

£45,032 (2021 - £35,956) included within the table above in respect of Funding for the academy trust's educational operations.

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

9. 1	Net income/(expenditure)		
	Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:		
		2022 £	2021 £
	Operating lease rentals	35,539	:6;485
	Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:	209,726	204,060
	Fees paid to auditors for:		,
	audit	6,550	5,200
	other services	9,540	8,250
		<del></del>	erione in the second
-		•	
íò. :	Staff		
•	a. Staff costs		
			•
3	Staff costs during the year were as follows:		
		2022	2021
		£	:1
	Nages and salaries	2,219,444	2,138,566
	Social security costs	210,278	198,079
Į.	Pension costs	732,822	647,047
	•	0.400.544	0.000.000
		3,162,544	2,983,692
1	Agency staff costs	139,075	150,180
		2 204 640	2 422 070
		3,301,619	3,133,872 —————
	·		
j	b. Staff numbers		
٠-	The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the Year w	as as follows:	
			•
		2022	2021
	A Control of the Cont	No.	No
		- 12	
	Teachers	44	42
	Admin and Support	54	49
ı	Management:	7	
		105	98
		105	, 90

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

## 10. Staff (continued)

### b. Staff numbers (continued)

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

	·		•		2022 No.	2021 No.
Teachers		,			34	33
Admin and Support		2		1.58.2.2.2.3.	29	27
Management					6:	6
			•			<del></del> .
		٠			69	66

### c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

			.2022 No.	2021 No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000			1	1
In the band £80,001 - £90,000			Î	Ť.

## d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Directors and the senior management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy was £495,709 (2021::£480,825).

## HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### 11. Directors' remuneration and expenses

One or more Directors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the Academy. The principal and other staff Directors only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment. The value of Directors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

·		2022	2021
	the second secon	£	£
Mr M G Simpson, Head Teacher	Remuneration	85,000 -	85,000 -
		90,000	90,000
	Pension contributions paid	20,000 -	20,000 -
		25,000	25,000
Neil Colbourne (Appointed 1 December 2021)	Remuneration	35,000 -	-
		40,000	
	Pension contributions paid	5.000 -	
·	ř	10,000	•
Ms S Stephenson (Resigned 31 August 2022)	Remuneration	15,000 -	15,000 -
		20,000	20,000
•	Pension contributions paid	5.000 -	0 - 5.000
	•	10,000	•
Mr J Ulph, Staff Governor (Resigned 30 November	Remuneration	10,000 -	45,000 -
2021)	•	15,000	50,000
	Pension contributions paid	0 - 5,000	10,000 -
		***	15,000
Mrs L Collins (resigned 30 September 2020)	Remuneration		0 - 5,000
,	Pension contributions paid	· ·	0 - 5,000

During the year, retirement benefits were accruing to 4 Directors (2021 - 2) in respect of defined contribution pension schemes.

During the Year ended 31 August 2022, no Director expenses have been incurred (2021 - £NIL).

#### 12. Directors' and Officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy has purchased insurance to protect Directors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £200 (2021 - £6,020). The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### 13. Tangible fixed assets

	Long-term leasehold property £	Furniture and equipment £	Computer equipment £	Motor vehicles £	Total £
Cost or valuation	*****			renta de esperante	
At 1 September 2021	10,218,485	238,815	160,963	22,613	10,640,876
Additions	242,696	17,632	6,254	· <b>=</b> '	266,582
At 31 August 2022	10,461,181	256,447	167,217	22,613	10,907,458
Depreciation	•				
At 1 September 2021	1,218,595	223,931	132,293	22,613	1,597,432
Charge for the Year	183,533	11,543	14,650	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	209,726
At 31 August 2022	1,402,128	235,474	146,943	22,613	1,807,158
Net book value		· ···			
At 31 August 2022	9,059,053	20,973	20,274	_ :	9,100,300
At 31 August 2021	8,999,890	14,884	28,670	-	9,043,444

Included in long-term leasehold property is £1,062,000 relating to land that is not depreciated.

### 14. Debtors

				2022 £	2021 £
Due within one year			*		
Trade debtors		,,		920	-
Other debtors		,		116,436	-
Prepayments and accrued income	1			117,679	82,676
VAT recoverable		·	<i>:</i>	37,813	3,211
				272,848	85,887
• •		• .	•		

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

## 15. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

	2022 £	2021 £
Trade creditors	3,679	1,158
Loan	3,039	3,039
Accruals:and deferred income	171,651	45,228
	178,369	49,425
	2022	2021
	£	£
Deferred income at 1 September 2021	9,676	16,059
Resources deferred during the year	53,524	9,676
Amounts released from previous periods	(9,676)	(16,059)
	53,524	9,676

Deferred income relates to Trip Income and Breakfast Club Income that relates to the following year.

### 16. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

•	2022 £	2021 £
Loans	7,901	10,940

Loans payable by installments consist of a Salix loan repayable by equal semi-annual installments of £608 (2021: £608) over an eight-year period, and a Salix loan repayable by equal semi-annual installments of £911 (2021: £911) over an eight-year period. Both loans are interest free and unsecured.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Statement of fur	nds					
	Balance at 1 September 2021 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers In/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2022 £
Unrestricted						
funds						
General Funds - all funds	104,510	67,530	(59,014)		· <del>-</del> :	113,026
Restricted general funds	,			·		
Pupil Premium	18,874	143,264	(148,576)	<del>.</del>	· <b>—</b>	13,562
General Annual Grant (GAG)	•	3,320,698	(3,179,728)	229,524	-	370,494
Other grants - local authority	89,603	202,218	(159,159)	(132,662)	. · ÷:	-
Other grants - ESFA/DfE	28,113	102,867	(65,584)	(65,396)	, <del>"</del>	• •
Other income	65,578	127,523	(122,005)	(71,096)		<b>a</b> ,
Covid-19 catch up premium	13,288	-	: <b>-</b> x	(13,288)	•	
Other DfE/ESFA Covid-19 funding	34,560	12,852	<b>.</b>	(47,412)	· •	<b>=</b> :
Pension reserve	(2,032,000)	• •	(253,000)		2,163,000	(122,000
	(1,781,984)	3,909,422	(3,928,052)	(100,330)	2,163,000	262,056
Restricted fixed asset funds			. 4			
DfE/ESFA capital grants	806,084	164,424	(23,516)	(1,827)		945,165
Local Authority expansion funding	2,949,668	·	(64,002)	(1)	. : <del>•</del>	2,885,665
Capital expenditure from GAG & other income	89,628	•	(21,768)	102,158	 (=3	170,018
Assets Inherited on conversion	5,219,155		(100,440)			5,118,715
	9,064,535	164,424	(209,726)	100,330	, at	9,119,563

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### 17. Statement of funds (continued)

	Balance at 1 September 2021 £	Încomê £	Expenditure:	Transfers In/out £	Galns/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2022
Total Restricted funds	7,282,551	4,073,846	(4,137,778)		2,163,000	9,381,619
Total funds	7,387,061	4,141,376	(4,196,792)	<u>.</u>	2,163,000	9,494,645

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy.

Government Grants comprise of various grants awarded for specific projects, in particular to boost standards of attainment. Grants include Pupil Premium funding which is intended to support education for pupils from a disadvantaged background.

Local Government Grants includes SEN funding provided for pupils with Statements of Special Educational Needs and is used by the academy to assist with providing the necessary support for the pupils education.

Devolved capital funding is that provided to academies to use as it sees fit in areas such as improvements to buildings or facilities, or the repair or refurbishment of such.

Other capital grants are provided to the academy based on specific bids for individual projects.

Other income comprises various other receipts including school meals. The income is classed as restricted or unrestricted based on the nature of the income.

The pension reserve arises from the actuarial measurement of the Academy's share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit. This deficit is recorded as a provision. The actuarial cost of employing staff during the year is initially reflected in the normal running costs of the school in the restricted pension fund. The amount included in resources expended represents the pension cost for the year charged to income and expenditure that arises from actuarial calculations of service cost rather than employer contributions paid. Actuarial gains and losses that arise from changes in assumptions by the actuary or wider influences are shown in the restricted pension fund, the movement this year being a net £2,163,000 actuarial decrease in the net pension fund deficit.

Restricted fixed asset funds represent monles received in respect of and spent on fixed assets. This includes assets inherited on conversion. The total of resources expended within this fund include the depreciation charge for the year. The transfers figure is the amount of other funds used to acquire fixed assets.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2022.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

## 17. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

	Balance at 1 September 2020 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2021 £
Unrestricted funds		• • •				
General Funds - all funds	103,280	21,660	(14,159)	(6,271)	ਰ' —————	104,510
	:		•			
Restricted general funds			transfer terminal ter			
Pupil Premium	18,874	138,485	(138,485)	· •	<b></b>	18,874
General Annual Grant (GAG)	(1,822)	2,969,385	(2,957,114)	(10,449)	-	-
Other grants - local authority	4,869	179,467	(94,748)	. :	· •	89,588
Other grants - ESFA/DfE	21,086	193,514	(186,472)	æ•	÷	28,128
Other income	60,587	7,369	(2,378)	; <del>=</del> ;:	٠.٠	65,578
Covid-19 catch up premium		56,400	(43,112)		-	13,288
Other DfE/ESFA Covid-19 funding		38,207	(3,647)	***	_	34,560
Pension reserve	(1,573,000)		(178,000)	4	(281,000)	(2,032,000)
	(1,469,406)	3,582,827	(3,603,956)	(10,449)	(281,000)	(1,781,984)
Restricted fixed asset funds		·	e		·	·
		•	•			
DfE/ESFA capital grants	827,163	13,450	(22,617)	(11,912)	•	806,084
Local Authority						
expansion funding	3,006,841	÷	(64,002)	6,829	.=	2,949,668
Capital expenditure from GAG & other			,			
income	84,826	•	(17,001)	21,803		89,628
Assets inherited on conversion	5,319,595	.* · · · . '≅	(100,440)	4	· 1 ⊱	5,219,155

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

## 17. Statement of funds (continued)

	Balance at 1 September 2020 £	Încome. £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2021 £
	9,238,425	13,450	(204,060)	16,720		9,064,535
Total Restricted funds	7,769,019	3,596,277	(3,808,016)	6,271	(281,000)	7,282,551
Total funds	7,872,299	3,617,937	(3,822,175)	-	(281,000)	7,387,061

## 18. Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022	Restricted fixed asset funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
Tangible fixed assets			9,100,300	9,100,300
Current assets	113,026	559,386	30,203	702,615
Creditors due within one year	· 🐅	(175,330)	(3,039)	(178,369)
Creditors due in more than one year	·•;	-	(7,901)	(7,901)
Provisions for liabilities and charges	*:	(122,000)	" .=	(122,000)
Total	113,026	262,056	9,119,563	9,494,645

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

18.	Analysis of net assets between funds (cont	inuea)			
	Analysis of net assets between funds - prio	r year			
		Unrestricted funds 2021 £	Restricted funds 2021 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2021 £	Total funds 2021 £
	Tangible fixed assets	<b>:</b>	. •	9,043,444	9,043,444
	Current assets	104,510	310,381	21,091	435,982
	Creditors due within one year	-	(49,425)	,,,,,	(49,425
	Creditors due in more than one year	<u></u>	(10,940)	•	(10,940
	Provisions for liabilities and charges		(2,032,000)	••	(2,032,000
	Total	104,510	(1,781,984)	9,064,535	7,387,061
19.	Reconciliation of net expenditure to net case	sh flow from on	erating activit	ies	
			<b>3</b>	2022	2021
				2022	2021
	•	•		£	£
	Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement	t of financial acti	vities)		£
	Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement  Adjustments for:	t of financial acti	vities)	£	£
		t of financial acti	vities)	£	(204,238
	Adjustments for:	t of financial acti	vities)	£ (55,416)	(204,238
	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable		vities)	£ (55,416) 209,726 (164,424) (83)	204,060 (13,450
	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribut		vities)	£ (55,416)  209,726 (164,424) (83) 220,000	204,060 (13,450 (49
	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribut Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost		vities)	£ (55,416) 209,726 (164,424) (83) 220,000 33,000	204,060 (13,450 (49 154,000
	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribut Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost Increase in debtors		vities)	£ (55,416)  209,726 (164,424) (83) 220,000 33,000 (186,961)	204,060 (13,450 (49 154,000 (3,592
	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribut Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost		vities)	£ (55,416) 209,726 (164,424) (83) 220,000 33,000	204,060 (13,450 (49 154,000 (3,592
	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribut Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost Increase in debtors		vities)	£ (55,416)  209,726 (164,424) (83) 220,000 33,000 (186,961)	204,060 (13,450 (49 154,000 24,000 (3,592 (7,637
	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribut Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost Increase in debtors Increase/(decrease) in creditors  Net cash provided by operating activities		vities)	£ (55,416)  209,726 (164,424) (83) 220,000 33,000 (186,961) 128,944	204,060 (13,450 (49 154,000 24,000 (3,592 (7,637
20.	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribut Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost Increase in debtors Increase/(decrease) in creditors		vities)	£ (55,416)  209,726 (164,424) (83) 220,000 33,000 (186,961) 128,944	204,060 (13,450 (49 154,000 24,000 (3,592 (7,637
20.	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribut Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost Increase in debtors Increase/(decrease) in creditors  Net cash provided by operating activities		vities)	£ (55,416)  209,726 (164,424) (83) 220,000 33,000 (186,961) 128,944	204,060 (13,450 (49 154,000 (3,592 (7,637 153,094
20.	Adjustments for: Depreciation Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Interest receivable Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contribut Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost Increase in debtors Increase/(decrease) in creditors  Net cash provided by operating activities		vities)	£ (55,416)  209,726 (164,424) (83) 220,000 33,000 (186,961) 128,944  184,786	

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

21.	Cash flows from investing activities			
			2022	
	Dividends, interest and rents from investments		:£ 83:	£ 49
	Purchase of tangible fixed assets		(266,582)	
	Capital grants from DfE Group		164,424	13,450
	Net cash used in investing activities		(102,075)	(14,022
	•		=======================================	
	•			
22.	Analysis of cash and cash equivalents	•		
		•	2022 £	2021 £
	Cash at bank and in hand		429,767	350,095
	Total cash and cash equivalents		429,767	350,095
			<u> </u>	
23.	Analysis of changes in net debt			,
		At 1		
	and the second s	September	Özək flavor	At 31
		2021 £	Cash flows	August 2022 £
	Cash at bank and in hand	350,095	79,672	429,767
		350,095	79,672	429,767

### 24. Contingent liabilities

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset for which a Government capital grant was received, the Academy is required either to re-invest the proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Academy serving notice, the Academy shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

- (a) the value at that time of the Academy's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the Academy; and
- (b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the Secretary of State under the Funding Agreement.

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### 25. Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Bedford Borough Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

#### **Teachers' Pension Scheme**

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

## Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)
- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

### HOLYWELL CHURCH OF ENGLAND ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

### 25. Pension commitments (continued)

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £379,455 (2021 - £371,490).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website (https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

#### **Local Government Pension Scheme**

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate director-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £166,000 (2021 - £153,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £131,000 (2021 - £121,000) and employees' contributions totalled £ 35,000 (2021 - £32,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 21.9 per cent for employers and 5.5 per cent, 5.8 per cent and 6.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy, who were the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the Academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

#### Principal actuarial assumptions

		2022	2021
		%	%
Rate of increase in salaries		3.95	3.90
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation	•	2.95	2.90
Discount rate for scheme liabilities		4.25	1.65
		·	

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

	2022 Years	2021 Years
Retiring today		•
Males	22.0	21.9
Females	24.4	24.3
Retiring in 20 years		
Males	22.9	22.9
Females	26.1	26.0
		<u></u>

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

5.	Pension commitments (continued)	,	
	Sensitivity analysis		
		2022 £000	2021 £000
	Discount rate +0.1%	67	113
. •	Discount rate -0.1%	(69)	
	Mortality assumption - 1 year increase	78	184
	Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease	(76)	(177)
	CPI rate +0.1%	5	104
	CPlirate =0.1%	(5)	(102)
	Share of scheme assets		
	The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:	·	
		At 31	At 31 August
		August 2022	2021 £
	Equities	1,574,000	1,723,000
	Corporate bonds	597,000	460,000
	Property	364,000	230,000
-	Cash and other figuid assets	96,000	54,000
	Total market value of assets	2,631,000	2,467,000
	The actual return on scheme assets was (£12,000) (2021 - £246,000).	The second secon	The second secon
	The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follow	S:	
		2022	2021
	and the second of the second o	£	£
	Current service cost	(351,000)	(275,000,
	Interest cost	(33,000)	
	Administrative expenses	(3,000)	(2,000)
	Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities	(387,000)	(301,000)

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

## 25. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

	2022 £	2021 £
At 1 September	4,499,000	3,627,000
Current service cost	351,000	275,000
Interest cost	75,000	58,000
Employee; contributions	35,000	32,000
Actuarial (gains)/losses	(2,220,000)	491,000
Benefits paid	13,000	16,000
At 31 August	2,753,000	4,499,000
Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets were as	ollows:	
	2022	2021
	£	£
At 1 September	2,467,000	2,054,000
Interest income	42,000	34,000
		040.000

· · · · · ·	2022	2021
	£	£
At 1 September	2,467,000	2,054,000
Interest income	42,000	34,000
Actuarial (losses)/gains	(57,000)	210,000
Employer contributions	131,000	121,000
Employee contributions	35,000	32,000
Benefits paid	13,000	16,000
At 31 August	2,631,000	2,467,000

## 26. Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2022 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

		2022 £	:2021 £
Not later than 1 year		35,539	4,864
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year	árš	35,539	8,107
		71,078	12,971
	•	:	

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

#### 27. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

#### 28. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Directors being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the directors have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

#### **Expenditure Related Party Transaction**

During the year the Academy paid £1,340 (2021: £1,340) on a service level agreement for Diocese of St Albans. The related party arises as a result of the association between the Academy Trust and it's Diocese.

During the year the Academy paid £135 (2021: £30) on training courses from Diocese of St Albans. The related party arises as a result of the association between the Academy Trust and it's Diocese.

No other related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain directors' remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 11.